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The following answers are based on California Energy Commission (CEC) staff’s interpretation of the questions received. It is the Applicant’s responsibility to review the Solicitation Manual and to determine whether their proposed project is eligible for funding by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements within the solicitation. The CEC cannot give definitive advice as to whether a particular project is eligible for funding, because not all proposal details are known.


Key Takeaways
[bookmark: _Toc211856677]UL 3141 Certification 
· Advancing UL 3141-certified power control systems (PCS) for interoperability of commercial EV charging systems with flexible service connections and on-site generation is a central research goal of this funding. 
· Eligible PCS include:
· Commercially available UL 3141-certified systems
· Emerging technologies seeking UL 3141 certification over the project term
· The evaluation is neutral between the two types of eligible PCS, provided strong justification is given.
· The minimum requirements for UL 3141 testing and certification can be found on the Underwriter Laboratory's website at https://www.shopulstandards.com/ProductDetail.aspx?productId=UL3141_2_O_20241009. 
· Eligibility in the flexible service pilots may require additional PCS functionality beyond the criteria outlined in UL 3141; contact pilot teams for details:
· SCE Automated LCMS Pilot:
· Contact Roger Salas (roger.salas@sce.com) and Jaycee Estafani (jaycee.estefani@sce.com) directly
· PG&E Flex Connect Pilot
· Contact flexconnect@pge.com or visit www.pge.com/flexconnect 
Renewable Generation Clarification
· Renewable distributed energy resources (DERs) and renewable energy generation equipment must be 100% renewable as defined by the California Energy Commission’s “Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) Eligibility Guidebook (9th Edition).” 
· The draft 10th edition of the RPS Eligibility Guidebook was published on September 17, 2025, and includes the use of linear generators. As such, projects proposing to use fuel cells or linear generators as on-site generation are eligible for funding as long as they are using 100% renewable fuel as described in the 9th Edition RPS Guidebook [to be replaced by the 10th edition when published]. 
· Though RPS certification is not required, if generating electricity from a fuel source, applicants must demonstrate that the fuel is 100% renewable.
SDG&E Eligibility
· Projects in SDG&E’s service territory are not eligible for funding.
· SDG&E does not currently operate any flexible service connection pilots, nor does it have a framework in place to support limited load profile schedules for customers.
Key Changes
Match Funding for Projects Sited In and Benefiting California Native American Tribes
· CEC staff will be issuing an addendum reducing the match funding requirement to 10% for projects whose demonstration site is located in and benefiting a California Native American Tribe
UL 3141 Certification 
· CEC staff will be issuing an addendum to clarify UL 3141 certification requirements.
Renewable Generation Clarification
· CEC staff will be issuing an addendum to the solicitation manual clarifying the eligibility of renewable generation sources.
Disadvantaged Community (DAC) - Demonstration Requirement
· The DAC siting requirement will be replaced with a preference points system in an upcoming addendum.
· Projects in DACs or Tribal Reservations will receive scoring bonuses but are no longer mandatory.
· This change aims to broaden participation while still encouraging benefits to DACs
Application Deadline Extension
· CEC staff will be issuing an addendum to extend the submission deadline to Dec. 12, 2025, at 5:00pm (from Nov. 21). 
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Q1 – Is a confirmed site or location required at the time of application submission?
CEC – Yes – A “site commitment letter signed by an authorized representative of the proposed demonstration/ deployment site” is required in Attachment 9 (“Commitment and Support Letter Form”). Furthermore, each applicant must include a letter of support confirming its eligibility to participate in PG&E or SCE’s flexible service pilot. Because IOU staff require a specific site address to assess eligibility, each applicant must secure and confirm its demonstration site prior to submission.
(Duplicate questions included in response:
· Does the applicant need to identify a specific demonstration site location in its GFO response?)
Q2 – How many projects are planned to be funded under this solicitation in each group?
CEC - We intend to fund one project from Group 1 and reserve all remaining funds, likely enough for two projects, for Group 2. However, Section I.D.3 of the Solicitation Manual outlines the CEC’s right to make changes to the funding amount, including “increasing or decreasing the available funding and the min/max grant award amounts” or “reallocating funding between any of the groups.”
Q3 – Assuming the project funds will pay for the hardware on this demonstration?  This kind of hardware is expensive to procure and construct and therefore - can the project team use project finance funds from industry to engineer, procure and construct the demonstration equipment?
CEC - Recipients are permitted to use project finance funds to support project spending beyond the reimbursable amount awarded by the CEC. These funds would be considered match share if they are fully available to the applicant or its match partner at the time of application. While all projects must provide at least the minimum match percentage to be eligible for funding, applicants will be evaluated by their overall budgets and cost effectiveness. Applicants' ability to justify the level of funding, both CEC and match share, required for a successful project will be evaluated in the “budget and cost effectiveness” scoring criterion.
Q4 – Should subcontractor expenses—such as travel and equipment costs—be included in the application budget?
CEC – All major subrecipients (subrecipients receiving $100,000 or more of CEC funds) must submit budget documentation as a part of the application package. Please refer to Section I.C.6 of the solicitation manual for more information on application budget requirements.
Q5 – What is the objective of including the CBO in the project?
CEC – While the role of a community-based organization (CBO) will vary by project, its inclusion is intended to support workforce development, recruitment, and knowledge-sharing activities with the local community. 
Q6 – Will applicants who are not selected for funding also receive notification once award decisions are announced?
CEC – Applicants who are not selected for funding will not receive individual notifications. Awarded entities will be publicly listed in the Notice of Proposed Awards published after the proposal evaluation.
Q7 – The window for proposal submission, given the date of answered Q&A and the pre-requirements of the project, is very short. Can the submission due date be reconsidered to allow time for obtaining IOU approvals and absorbing the Q&A responses?
CEC – The CEC is extending the application deadline from November 21, 2025, to December 12, 2025, at 5:00 PM. An official addendum will be issued to confirm this update.
Q8 – Are there any unique carve outs or criteria for tribal applicants? Is the required match the same % for all applicants?
CEC – The match funding requirement will be reduced to 10% for projects with a demonstration site located in and benefiting a California Native American Tribe. CEC staff will issue an addendum to reflect this change. 
(Other question(s) addressed in response:
· Is there a reduced match requirement available for Tribal or CBO lead applicants under this program?)
Q9 – Does [the grant award] cover the cost of vehicle and chargers?
CEC – Yes - funds awarded by the CEC may be used to reimburse funds spent on EVs and chargers deployed in the demonstration. Alignment between project objectives and proposed spending, including all match funds, will be evaluated under Scoring Criterion 5, “Budget and Cost-Effectiveness.” 
Q10 – Are projects with existing CEC demonstration projects as likely to receive funding as others that have not had any CEC funding in the past? This question (whether projects with existing funding can get additional funding) is about the demonstration sites, not the applicants.
Projects that have received CEC funding in the past are no more or less likely to receive subsequent funding merely because of a previous award. However, Section IV, A of the Solicitation Manual states that, “Applications will be evaluated and scored based on responses to the information requested in this solicitation and on any other information available, such as past performance of CEC agreements.” Particularly strong or weak performances on past CEC agreements may therefore be considered by the evaluation team in application scoring. This includes demonstration site hosts with a history of partnering on well-performing projects. Furthermore, Section IV, E of the Solicitation Manual states that, “An applicant may be disqualified under this solicitation due to severe performance issues under one or more prior or active CEC agreements.”
Q11 – Is networking and reporting required for five years, and can networking services be discontinued after that period?
CEC – The analysis period for projects awarded under this GFO is 12 months, followed by relevant reporting deliverables outlined in the scope of work. The five-year networking and reporting requirement you are referring to may be referring to award requirements through the Fuels and Transportation Division; the DRIVES GFO does not have this five-year requirement.
(Other question(s) addressed in response:
· We understand the CEC requires five years of operational data and performance reporting following project completion. Can you confirm whether the EVSE units must remain network-connected and reporting beyond that period, or if the applicant is free to operate them offline or under a different configuration once the five years have concluded?)
Q12 – Can you please clarify the match share formula used here? Is it the DOE formula or a percentage of CEC reimbursable funds?
CEC – Match share is calculated as a percentage of the total CEC reimbursable funds. For example, if an applicant with a demonstration site not located in and benefiting a California Native American Tribe were proposing an award of $3,000,000, it would be required to provide at least $900,000 in match funding.
Q13 – Where to find the ppt? I already checked the GFO website but found nothing.
CEC – Both the PowerPoint slides and workshop recording are accessible on the pre-application workshops event page at https://www.energy.ca.gov/event/funding-workshop/2025-10/pre-application-workshop-gfo-25-301-distributed-resources-innovative. 
(Other question(s) addressed in response:
· Will there be a recording available from today’s presentation?  Thank You!)
Q14 – Do subrecipients need to be based in California?
CEC – There is no requirement that subrecipients be based in California; however, projects will be evaluated in part on "Funds Spent in California" (See Solicitation Manual, Section F). Also refer to Solicitation Manual, Section I.L. for a more thorough explanation of "Funds spent in California."
Q15 – Could you please clarify what is meant by “costs incurred”? Does this refer to when purchase orders are placed, or when invoices are issued to the project partner or developer?
CEC – In the context of the Solicitation Manual Section I.C.6. Budget Forms, costs incurred refer to expenses that have been paid or are owed as a result of the project. Both purchase orders and invoices from project partners would qualify as “costs incurred.”
Q16 – Does this effectively prevent LADWP customers from applying? What if the applicant is a firm like Vector Energy that has worked with PG&E and SCE energy projects in the past?  If not, is there a separate program for LADWP customers?
CEC – Demonstrations must be sited in either PG&E or SCE’s service territory to be eligible for the IOUs’ flexible service pilots. LADWP may act as a project partner, so long as the demonstration is sited in and serving either PG&E’s or SCE’s service territory.
Q17 – Is there a deadline for when the resources have to be installed? (Assume it will be in late 2026/2027.)
CEC – There is no firm deadline by which the DERs and charging infrastructure must be installed. However, the anticipated agreement end date of May 31, 2030, anticipates that construction/commissioning will be completed and that 12 months of analysis will begin around 2027-2028.
(Other question(s) addressed in response:
· What is the date the energy source needs to be installed, since it is custom made?
· What is the required energize date?)
Q18 – Can valid utility rebates be used? If so, will they be considered part of an applicant’s match funds?
CEC – Valid utility rebates may be used, but they will not be considered a share of an applicant’s match funds because they are contingent. “Match funds do not include… contingent awards from other entities (public or private).” Please refer to Section I.K of the solicitation manual for more information on match funds.
Q19 – Is there a preference for the planned commercial EV charging site to be on State land or private land?
CEC – The evaluation criteria (Solicitation Manual, Section IV) does not outline any preference given to state vs. private land. However, the applicant is encouraged to strongly justify the unique features (e.g., grid constraints, opportunity for renewable distributed generation, scalability, use case) that make its demonstration site a compelling use case for DER-integrated EV charging under a flexible service connection.
Subsequent Questions: 
a. If State land is an option, does the State of California have potential have potential parcels already identified in line with the RFQ?
CEC – State land is an option for demonstrations, so long as the site is served by either PG&E or SCE and is eligible for flexible service, though the CEC has no parcels identified.
b. If private land is preferred, can the cost of land be included in either the reimbursable or cost share portion of the application?
CEC – As mentioned above, there is no explicit preference for private land. Land procurement costs may not be included in either the reimbursable or cost share portion of the application. “Match funds do not include… the cost or value of the project work site.” Please refer to Section I.K of the solicitation manual for more information on match funds.
Q20 – Is there a recommended or minimum budget allocation (dollars or percentage) that should go to the Community-Based Organization (CBO) project partner?
CEC – While there is no minimum budget allocation outlined for CBO project partners, any funding designated for CBOs in the budget should be justified alongside a description of their role in the project. 
Q21 – In some recent CEC solicitations, there had been a preliminary abstract proposal evaluation phase.  This solicitation does not have this preliminary step.  Why?
CEC – CEC staff opted for a one-phase scoring process, compared to the two-phase abstract/full application approach described in your question, due to a constrained evaluation timeline as we approach the end of the EPIC 4 funding cycle.
Q22 – If a site is getting a battery and bidirectional EVSEs as part of an existing CEC grant, can the funds from the new grant be used towards the same site specifically to connect their existing solar with the battery and EV charger setup?

CEC – Funding under this solicitation could support connecting solar with a battery and EV charging infrastructure at a site that is already hosting a CEC-funded project, and in general would support site additions/expansions, so long as all other application requirements of the GFO are met (e.g., enrolling in a flexible service pilot with either PG&E or SCE, integration of a UL 3141 certified power control system). Budget documentation submitted as a part of the application package must clearly justify the cost-effectiveness of any funds awarded under the GFO. Furthermore, neither existing equipment nor previous CEC awards may be used as match funds. If one site is hosting multiple CEC-funded projects, they will need to very clearly track and document funding from each project separately and ensure no double-counting.

	(Other question(s) addressed in response:

· If a site has solar but is not operational, can the grant funding be used to update the solar system to make it operational, provided the cost of doing so is less than installing a new solar system?
· If a site does not have any existing renewable generation source, can the funds be used to install a new renewable generation source in addition to bidirectional EV chargers and a battery energy storage system (BESS)?)
Q23 – For any of the scenarios above is there a minimum match share commitment required from the site host?
CEC – There is no minimum match share commitment requirement specific to the site host.
Q24 – Could you clarify the 12-month analysis period; does it need to be completed before the agreement end date of 5/31/30?
CEC – Yes – the 12-month analysis must be completed before the anticipated agreement end date of May 31, 2030. Additionally, any reporting outlined in the scope of work, following the 12 months of data collection/analysis, must also be finalized prior to the agreement end date.
Q25 – Is this intended to be a permanent or temporary solution?
CEC – DERs, power control systems, and EV charging infrastructure funded under this solicitation are intended as permanent solutions for recipients and/or site hosts. 
Q26 – What factors or criteria determine whether match funding required will exceed 30% of the total project cost?
CEC – There are no specific factors or criteria that determine whether or not a project will exceed the match funding minimum. Each project will have unique budgetary needs, and 30% (or 10% for projects with a demonstration site located in and benefiting a California Native American Tribe) merely indicates the minimum match funding required for eligibility. All applicants will be evaluated on the alignment between their project objectives and proposed spending, including all match funds, under Scoring Criterion 5, “Budget and Cost-Effectiveness.” 
Q27 – Can we phase installation - for example, install all conduit and infrastructure now but add chargers over several years?
CEC – While there are no specific installation timeline requirements, all of the minimum required hardware and software must be installed, commissioned, and operational prior to the 12-month data collection/analysis period and subsequent final reporting required for each scope of work funded under this GFO. 
Q28 – Are the POUs eligible to be a project partner for this GFO?
CEC – Yes – POUs are eligible to act as project partners (e.g., subrecipients); however, all funded demonstrations must be sited in either PG&E’s or SCE’s service territory and participate in either of their flexible service pilots. 
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Q29 – Could the CEC more fully define which systems should be classified as alternate current (AC) coupled vs. direct current (DC) coupled?
CEC – Group 1 targets DC-coupled microgrids, which should include a DC bus network to maintain solar generation, battery storage, and EV chargers in their native DC form—minimizing the need for multiple inverters and conversions. Group 2 targets AC-coupled microgrids, which typically use an AC bus network and may require DC/AC inverters to integrate renewable generation, storage, and charging components.
Subsequent Questions:
a. If a system has solar panels connected to a DC/DC converter to charge up a battery that is then providing Level 2 AC charging power (e.g., J1772) to vehicles via a DC/AC inverter, would this be classified as AC coupled or DC coupled?
CEC – We would consider such a system AC-coupled for the purposes of this GFO. The conversion from DC generation/storage to AC chargers would disqualify such a system from Group 1. However, it may still be eligible under Group 2.
b. If a system has solar panels with a solar inverter feeding AC power to a DC Fast Charger, would such a system be classified as AC coupled or DC coupled?
CEC – We would consider such a system AC-coupled for the purposes of this GFO. The conversion from AC power to DC chargers would disqualify such a system from Group 1; however, it may still be eligible under Group 2.
c. If a system had DC fast chargers driven directly from solar panels via a DC/DC converter operating at a site that also has batteries connected to bi-directional DC/AC inverters providing Level 2 AC charging, would such a system be classified as AC coupled or DC coupled?
CEC – Projects eligible under Group 1 will not include behind-the-meter DC generation to AC charging conversions. However, such a system may be eligible under Group 2. 
Q30 – What is the preferred technology readiness of the technologies?
CEC – CEC staff elected not to include specific guidelines around technology readiness level in the solicitation manual to remain open to both commercially available and developing solutions. However, we anticipate that the components comprising solutions applying under Group 1 may have a slightly lower TRL (likely 6-8) compared to the components of systems applying under Group 2 (likely 7-9). The additional funding available for Group 1 applicants is included to cover any additional costs that may be incurred in preparing/testing pre-commercial DC power electronics for demonstration readiness. 
We encourage all applicants to use their proposals to justify how their systems represent a compelling solution to address utility coordination challenges when pairing commercial EV charging with on-site renewable generation, how funding could help advance their proposed solutions, and how they are poised to produce strong analysis on ratepayer and cost-savings benefits.
(Other question(s) addressed in response:

· CEC mentions a desire for TRL advancement as a result of the project, but has a good number of constraints on the project (such as certifications, acceptance by PG&E, strong site context, etc.) that suggest a more mature technology package is desired. Can you clarify what the desired starting TRL would be, or whether TRL advancement is the goal?
· Does the CEC have expected / minimum Technology Readiness Level (TRL) ratings for project entry and exit?
· If its TRL8 is that ok to be included?)
Q31 – Does the battery need to serve only EV loads, or can it also support other site loads like office operations?
CEC – The on-site generation and battery energy storage may be used to support other site loads in addition to EV charging infrastructure.
Q32 – Is there a minimum project size?
CEC – No – CEC staff intentionally left size/energy requirements (for generation, storage, and EV chargers) out of the solicitation manual to allow proposals for projects in a variety of use cases under a variety of constraints. Nor is there a minimum percentage of charger load that must be met by on-site generation vs. utility power. However, we are targeting priority use cases and strongly encourage applicants to use their proposals to justify the cost-effectiveness and impacts of their proposed solutions. Please refer to Section I.C of the solicitation manual for more details on priority use cases being targeted by this GFO.
(Other question(s) addressed in response:

· Is there a prescribed minimum kW size for the EV charging units?
· What was the mw requirements? I missed the first part of the presentation?
· What is the power required (in mw)?
· Is there a project requirement or recommendation for the percentage of energy delivered to EV chargers that must come from renewable sources? For example, 60% from renewables and 40% from the utility grid.)
Q33 – Also wanted to be clarified that for the DC coupled option, is AC-DC PCS allowed for connecting the DC coupled microgrid to the IOU's grid power? 
CEC – Yes – applicants to Group 1 with DC-coupled microgrid solutions are allowed to include an AC-DC power control system to import and regulate AC utility power. However, all behind-the-meter assets (e.g., renewable generation, storage, EV chargers) must be DC-coupled. 
Q34 – Are any specific charging standards or interfaces preferred by the CEC? (e.g., SAE Combo vs. CHAdeMO vs. NACS vs. J1772) 
CEC – No – There are no specific charging standards or interfaces required for an award.
Q35 – Is a grid disconnect capability a requirement?
CEC – No – grid disconnect ability is not a requirement, though islanding features may help strengthen the case for commercial EV charging integrated with on-site generation, particularly in grid-constrained areas prone to power outages.
(Other question(s) addressed in response:

· Does the microgrid need to be capable of islanded operation independent from the utility electric service?)
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Q36 – Can funding be used to add capacity to existing microgrids that otherwise meet the criteria to add EV charging capacity?
CEC – Yes - there is no language in the solicitation manual disqualifying applicants proposing to expand existing sites that otherwise meet all eligibility criteria. An applicant looking to expand use of existing sites should refer to the solicitation goals and justify in its application why such an expansion provides a compelling opportunity to participate in a flexible service pilot and integrate on-site generation and storage for commercial EV charging. Please note that neither existing equipment nor previous CEC awards may be used as match funds.

(Other question(s) addressed in response:

· Is the grant funding restricted to new construction projects, or can it also be applied to retrofitting or expanding existing infrastructure?
· Can you clarify if a project may propose a microgrid solution coupled with existing, already installed EVSE? Or are new EVSE installations required?
· Are upgrades to existing EV charging sites that use a flexible interconnection pilot eligible, or is it new builds only?)
Q37 – Can you define the range of "renewable" resources eligible in this GFO? Specifically, are technologies that use biomethane and renewable natural gas eligible?
CEC – Renewable DERs and renewable energy generation equipment must be 100% renewable as defined by the California Energy Commission’s “Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) Eligibility Guidebook (9th Edition).” The draft 10th edition of the RPS Eligibility Guidebook, published on September 17, 2025, includes linear generators as potentially RPS eligible. As such, projects using fuel cells or linear generators as on-site generation are eligible for funding so long as they are using 100% renewable fuel as described in the 9th Edition RPS Guidebook [to be replaced by the 10th edition when published]. Though RPS certification is not required, if the proposed generation technology requires a fuel source such as biofuel, applicants must demonstrate that the fuel is 100% renewable.
CEC staff will be issuing an addendum to the solicitation manual clarifying the eligibility of generation resources.
(Other question(s) addressed in response:
· Is a project using fuel cells to provide AC power for commercial EV eligible for this GFO?
· Can hydrogen energy storage be counted as part of the overall system’s energy storage to qualify for funding?
· Is renewable natural gas considered a Renewable Source (e.g. RNG fuel cell generator)?
· Our ADES is a Thorium based would it as a microreactor would that be included in renewable?
· Is renewable propane fueled fuel cell applicable for the funding opportunity?
· Will renewable fuels powered generators applicable for this opportunity?)
Q38 – Is commercial EV charging for trucks or is the definition broader than that?
CEC – The GFO encourages a wide range of innovative commercial EV charging projects that integrate DERs and flexible service options. Examples include (but are not limited to):
· Destination Charging (e.g., malls, restaurants, hotels, casinos, resorts)
· Workplace and Corporate Campuses
· Multifamily and Residential Complexes
· Fleet and Logistics (including private “behind the fence” fleet operations)
· Public Charging Networks
· Municipal Transit
· Heavy Duty and Industrial
· Educational Institutions (e.g., school bus fleets, public/private campus charging)
· Shared-Use Private Charging (e.g., employee-only workplace charging)
Important Notes:
· Projects serving private, single-family homes are not eligible. 
· All applicants, regardless of use case, are required to meet all minimum requirements outlined in the solicitation manual. 
· There are no minimum or maximum demonstration size requirements (e.g., vehicles served, energy dispensed) outlined in the solicitation manual.
· There are no minimum or maximum charging rates outlined in the solicitation manual.
· Applicants may connect commercial charging to other non-charging related loads under the same microgrid managed by a single PCS.
· Proposals must clearly define the intended use case and are encouraged to include compelling reasons for incorporating behind-the-meter generation and flexible service agreements in addition to the system’s potential benefits to the local community and broader ratepayers. 
(Other question(s) addressed in response:
· The RFP notes that "commercial" also includes multifamily housing. Are there any requirements unique to affordable multifamily housing properties or developers?
· If our chargers will be fleet-only and behind the fence, are we still eligible for this grant or is public access required?
· Are public schools (elementary, high schools, etc.) eligible for the project site, where their parking lot may only open for faculty and staff?
· Can projects be located in multifamily residential parking lots — whether dedicated for tenants or open to the public/visitors (or both)
· Is a California Public School District’s EV school bus charging depot an eligible demonstration site?
· Are there any restrictions on eligible commercial sites? Would a casino site be eligible?
· Do multifamily sites have to be installed on shared parking spaces? (vs having dedicated parking spots)
· How many charging stations / simultaneous vehicles under charge is the CEC targeting for the commercial charging center in this solicitation? Is there a minimum number of charging stations required by the CEC?
· What are the minimum and maximum charging rates (per vehicle) the CEC is targeting for the commercial charging center in this solicitation? 
·  
· Does the charging station need to be accessible to the public, or would a charging station operating commercially for a private or limited fleet be considered responsive to this solicitation?
· Is the CEC interested in applications where a commercial charging station and other non-charging related electrical loads are connected into the same microgrid / DER and managed by the same PCS? For example, a restaurant with a charging pavilion behind the restaurant where both the charging and restaurant electrical loads are running from the same microgrid supplied by the same DERs?)
Q39 – The DRIVES program requires that a project site be located in a Disadvantaged Community (DAC) per CalEnviroScreen 4.0. Can the CEC elaborate why that is a requirement of this solicitation, where other CEC solicitations instead weigh projects in a DAC more favorably than those outside of DACs through their scoring criteria or require a percentage of the awarded applications serve a DAC? The DAC requirement is quite restrictive, and these types of projects are not able to be moved to new sites that can meet the many geographic requirements. Can the CEC please adjust this DAC requirement to instead weigh projects in DACs more favorably or have a percentage of the total number of projects awarded be in DACs, instead of all of the projects? When commercial EV charging developers are assessing project locations to develop their sites many items are critical to the business case, but the location being in a DAC is very infrequently considered, especially when compared to potential demand, proximity to highways and freight corridors, and utility power. Having projects benefit DACs is very important but this strict all or nothing requirement will limit the number of qualified projects that the CEC receives under this solicitation.
CEC – CEC staff will issue an addendum revising the current requirement for project siting in disadvantaged communities (DACs). Instead, projects located in DACs, Low Income Communities, or Tribal Territories will receive preference points during evaluation.
While benefits like cost savings, resiliency, air quality, and charging access remain critical for DACs, the previous requirement may have excluded strong candidates. The updated scoring criteria aim to encourage siting in these areas without limiting broader participation or ratepayer benefits.
(Other question(s) addressed in response:
· Can the site where the project takes place be close to a disadvantaged community, or is it a firm requirement that a site be located in a disadvantaged census tract? Is there a maximum distance from a community that the CEC is comfortable with? 
· Someone in the webinar also had a relevant question about tribal sites, but it sounded like the answer would be best in written form. If the location is both within a DAC and a tribal area and site host is a tribe – given all other conditions are met – would this be an allowable site location?
· Are areas designated in CalEnviroScreen 4.0 as "DAC 1/2 mile neighbors" eligible for this GFO?
· Would CEC allow projects with more than one sites with only one of the sites located in CalEnviroScore 75% areas?)
Q40 – Are level 2 chargers eligible for funding under this solicitation?
CEC – There is no minimum or maximum required charger level for this GFO.
(Other question(s) addressed in response:
Is the CEC looking for the commercial charging station to support Level 2 AC charging, Level 3 DC fast charging, or some combination of both?)
Q41 – Are there any requirements for the hardware to be manufactured in the U.S. in order to qualify for funding?
CEC – There is no requirement that hardware be manufactured in the United States to be eligible for funding under this GFO.
Q42 – One of the inherent benefits of DC architecture is that a project's grid connection can be much smaller than conventional AC-coupled systems. For projects in Group 1, if the project's anticipated grid connection does not exceed the existing utility service and/or panel capacity, being part of a flexible service pilot program would be unnecessary. Would the CEC consider this kind of project and, if so, would the requirement to enroll in the PG&E or SCE flexible service pilot still apply?
CEC – The load limiting profile unique to enrollment in a PG&E or SCE flexible service pilot is central to the research goals of this GFO, and thus all projects must enroll in either of these pilots to be eligible for funding.
Q43 – Can SCE's Charge Ready Transport program satisfy the grant's IX [investigation] requirement?
CEC – SCE’s Charge Ready Transport Program alone does not satisfy the investigation requirements of this GFO. All funded demonstrations must be enrolled in either PG&E or SCE’s flexible service pilot.
Q44 – Can the scope of work eligible under this grant be an isolated portion of a larger EVSE DC/AC-coupled behind-the-meter microgrid project? For example, could the applicable scope be limited to only the EVSE portion or only the BESS portion of the overall project?
CEC – No – the scope of work and analysis for awarded projects includes the entire integrated system of renewable distributed generation, battery storage, EV charging infrastructure, a UL 3141 PCS, and other microgrid hardware. The scope of work or analysis cannot be limited to isolated elements of these systems. However, funds awarded through this GFO may be used to add to pre-existing elements, so long as the entire system meets the minimum requirements outlined in Section I.C of the solicitation manual. Please note that pre-existing system elements do not qualify as a form of match funding.
Q45 – Could you please clarify whether project eligibility for the DRIVES grant is determined by the point of service or by the property address? Additionally, if a separate project at the same location—but under a different point of service—is already receiving CEC funds through another grant, would this project still be eligible?
CEC – Eligibility for DRIVES is considered based on the demonstration site address (which in most cases should align with the point of service). Questions about pilot eligibility (a requirement of DRIVES recipients) should be directed towards staff at PG&E or SCE directly. The award of previous CEC funds does not disqualify an applicant for eligibility, even if previous funds are being spent at the demonstration site being proposed under DRIVES. Please note that previous awards may not be used as match funds. Please also note the response to Q22, which states that projects proposing demonstrations on sites previously funded by the CEC must clearly separate funding and benefits separately to avoid double-counting.
[bookmark: _Toc211856681]Pilot
Q46 – Will applications from SDG&E be considered? If so, could you please explain why?
CEC - The integration and analysis of behind-the-meter generation with electric vehicle charging infrastructure operating under limited load profile schedules is a core objective of GFO-25-301. Accordingly, applicants are required to submit a letter of support from either Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) or Southern California Edison (SCE) staff, confirming that the proposed project is eligible to participate in their respective flexible service pilot programs. This requirement is detailed on pages 5, 31, and 46 of the Solicitation Manual (Attachment 1). 
San Diego Gas & Electric Company (SDG&E), in its filing titled “SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY’S (U 902-E) OPENING COMMENTS ON NEXT STEPS FOR FLEXIBLE SERVICE CONNECTIONS, MODIFYING PHASE 2 SCHEDULE” under CPUC Rulemaking 24-01-018, has stated that it does not currently operate any flexible service connection pilots, nor does it have a framework in place to support limited load profile schedules for customers. As a result, applicants proposing demonstration projects within SDG&E’s service territory are not eligible to participate in such pilots and, therefore, cannot provide the required letter of support.
(Other question(s) addressed in response:
· Does this mean that no project in SDG&E territory is possible?
· Why do projects need to be within only SCE or PG&E utility areas? Is that because only those have an existing flex program?)
Q47 – Are there any load limitation requirements mandated by the IOU? If so, what is the maximum load limitation a utility can impose? 
CEC – Scheduled load limitations are intrinsic to flexible service agreements; however, the specific load limitations will vary based on the site’s unique capacity constraints. Questions about these constraints should be directed to PG&E and SCE pilot staff directly.
Q48 – Does the applicant need to be filed under SCE’s [or PG&E’s] pilot program by the time of application, by the time of award, or some other milestone?
CEC – A letter of support from IOU pilot staff indicating eligibility for enrollment in a flexible service pilot is a required element of the proposal package; enrollment itself is not required by the time of application. Applicants who are already enrolled in flexible service pilots are still eligible for funding.
[bookmark: _Toc211856682]Certification
Q49 – The UL 3141 document published on October 9th, 2024, is a UL Outline, which is not a consensus-based UL standard. The consensus standard was published much more recently and only a couple of companies have UL 3141-certified products. Getting certified would take longer than the current grant deadline allows for. Would the CEC consider expanding that requirement to include UL 1741 certification requirement decision (CRD) products?
CEC – the current UL 3141 certification documents are an “outline for investigation.” The consensus-based UL 3141 standard is anticipated to be published Q4 2025 -Q1 2026, well ahead of the anticipated start dates for projects awarded under DRIVES.
Advancing UL 3141-certified power control systems for interoperability of commercial EV charging systems with flexible service connections is a central research goal of this funding. However, this GFO remains open to PCSs that are both a) commercially available and currently certified under UL 3141 or b) emerging technologies that are seeking UL 3141 certification. The evaluation criteria have no preference for either option so long as there is strong justification from the applicant in the funding proposal. An applicant proposing with UL 1741 CRD PCSs may be eligible so long as there is a pathway to advance those devices to UL 3141 certification and compliance with IOU flexible service pilots outlined in its project proposal. CEC funds may be used to pursue UL 3141 certification.
[bookmark: _Hlk211856714]CEC staff will issue an addendum to the solicitation manual more clearly outlining requirements related to UL 3141 certification.
(Other question(s) addressed in response:
· Can CEC funding be used to pursue UL3141 certification of a power control system (PCS) or does the project need to spec an existing UL3141 certified PCS?
· Does the proposed Power Control System (PCS) need to be UL3141 Cerfitied at the time of proposal submission, or would a unit that is on track to achieve certification prior to the agreement start date be considered acceptable?
· Same question, but for a unit on track to achieve certification prior to installation per the proposed project timeline?
· Is load control through a UL3141 certified device required if a participant is participating in PG&E’s FlexConnect program, where a UL 3141-certified device is not required for program participation? Said another way, will CEC require UL3141 if the utility does not?
· Does UL 3141 device need to be listed by the time the project begins, or can the device be confirmed to be compliant to UL 3141?
· UL3141 document published on October 9th, 2024, is an UL Outline, which is not a consensus based UL standard, right?)
Q50 – Does the CEC have a list of Commercial UL-3141 Certified Power Control Systems?
CEC – PCSs are certified under the product category Power Control Systems (QIJE) and investigated for compliance with UL 3141, Outline of Investigation for Power Control Systems. The guide information and Certifications (Listings) for QIJE can be viewed on UL Product iQ at www.UL.com/piq; enter QIJE at the search field.
Please note that products listed as UL 3141 certified on UL’s Product iQ site are not necessarily guaranteed to align with the unique power control needs of each demonstration site or the requirements laid out by IOU pilot staff.
Q51 – Is the CEC able to provide UL 3141 minimum requirements in those 2 pilots?
CEC – The minimum requirements for UL 3141 testing and certification can be found on the Underwriter Laboratory's website at https://www.shopulstandards.com/ProductDetail.aspx?productId=UL3141_2_O_20241009. Eligibility in the flexible service pilots may require additional PCS functionality beyond the criteria outlined in UL 3141. Other questions about eligibility of PCS for use in flexible service pilots should be directed to the pilot teams directly.
(Other question(s) addressed in response:
· GFO mention “Projects must use UL 3141-certified power control systems that meet minimum requirements outlined by the Flex Connect or LCMS pilots, as applicable.”  Are such minimum requirements from the pilots publicly available?)
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